UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON

In the Matter of
FRESENI US AG
a corporation; and File No. 961-0053
FRESENI US USA, | NC

a corporation.

N N N N N N N N N N N

AGREEMENT CONTAI NI NG CONSENT ORDER

The Federal Trade Commi ssion ("Conmm ssion"), having
initiated an investigation of the proposed acquisition by
Fresenius AG of National Medical Care, Inc. fromWR Gace &
Co., and it now appearing that Fresenius AG and Freseni us USA,
Inc. (hereinafter sonetines referred to as "proposed
respondents”) are willing to enter into an agreenent containing
an order to divest certain assets, and to cease and desist from
maki ng certain acquisitions wthout providing advance witten
notification to the Comm ssion, and providing for other relief:

| T 1S HEREBY AGREED by and between proposed respondents, by
their duly authorized officers and attorneys, and counsel for the
Conmi ssi on that:

1. Proposed respondent Fresenius AGis a corporation
organi zed, existing and doi ng busi ness under and by virtue of the
laws of Germany with its office and principal place of business
| ocat ed at Borkenberg 14, 61440 (berursel/Ts, Bad Homburg,

Ger many.

2. Proposed respondent Fresenius USA, Inc. is a
corporation organi zed, existing and doi ng busi ness under and by
virtue of the |laws of Massachusetts with its principal place of
busi ness | ocated at 2637 Shadel ands Drive, Wl nut Creek,
California 94598.

3. Proposed respondents admt all the jurisdictional facts
set forth in the draft of conplaint here attached.
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4. Proposed respondents wai ve:
a. any further procedural steps;
b. the requirenment that the Conmm ssion's decision

contain a statenment of findings of fact and
concl usi ons of |aw

C. all rights to seek judicial review or otherwise to
chal l enge or contest the validity of the order
entered pursuant to this agreenent; and

d. any clai munder the Equal Access to Justice Act.

5. Proposed respondents shall submt, within thirty (30)
days of the date this agreenent is signed by proposed
respondents, an initial report signed by the proposed respondents
setting forth in detail the manner in which the proposed
respondents will conply with Paragraph Il of the order when and
if entered. Such report will not becone part of the public
record unless and until the acconpanying order is nade final by
t he Comm ssion and the required divestiture acconpli shed.

6. Thi s agreenent shall not become part of the public
record of the proceeding unless and until it is accepted by the
Comm ssion. If this agreenent is accepted by the Commi ssion it,

together with the draft of conplaint contenplated thereby, wll
be placed on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days
and information in respect thereto publicly released. The

Comm ssion thereafter nmay either withdraw its acceptance of this
agreenent and so notify the proposed respondents, in which event
it will take such action as it nmay consider appropriate, or issue
and serve its conplaint (in such formas the circunstances nay
require) and decision, in disposition of the proceeding.

7. This agreenent is for settlenent purposes only and does
not constitute an adm ssion by proposed respondents that the | aw
has been violated as alleged in the draft of conplaint here
attached, or that the facts as alleged in the draft conplaint,
other than jurisdictional facts, are true.

8. Thi s agreenent contenplates that, if it is accepted by
t he Conmm ssion, and if such acceptance is not subsequently
wi t hdrawn by the Comm ssion pursuant to the provisions of § 2.34
of the Comm ssion's Rules, the Comm ssion may, wthout further
notice to the proposed respondents, (1) issue its conplaint
corresponding in formand substance with the draft of conplaint
here attached and its decision containing the follow ng order to
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di vest and to cease and desist in disposition of the proceedi ng
and (2) make information public with respect thereto. Wen so
entered, the order to divest shall have the sane force and effect
and may be altered, nodified or set aside in the sane manner and
within the sane tinme provided by statute for other orders. The
order shall becone final upon service. Delivery by the United

St ates Postal Service of the conplaint and deci si on cont ai ni ng
the agreed-to order to proposed respondents' addresses as stated
in this agreenent shall constitute service. Proposed respondents
wai ve any right they may have to any other manner of service.

The conpl aint may be used in construing the terns of the order,
and no agreenent, understanding, representation, or
interpretation not contained in the order or the agreenment nay be
used to vary or contradict the terns of the order.

9. Proposed respondents have read the proposed conpl ai nt
and order contenpl ated hereby. Proposed respondents understand
that once the order has been issued, they will be required to

file one or nore conpliance reports showi ng that they have fully

conplied with the order. Proposed respondents further understand
that they nay be liable for civil penalties in the anount

provi ded by |law for each violation of the order after it becones

final.

ORDER

| T 1S ORDERED that, as used in this Order, the foll ow ng
definitions shall apply:

A "Respondents” or "Fresenius" neans Fresenius AG and
Fresenius USA, Inc., their directors, officers, enployees, agents
and representatives, their predecessors, successors, and assigns;
their subsidiaries, divisions, and groups and affiliates
controll ed by Fresenius, and the respective directors, officers,
enpl oyees, agents, representatives, successors and assigns of
each; their donestic and foreign parents, and the subsidiaries,
di visions, and groups and affiliates controlled by any other
donmestic or foreign parent, and the respective directors,
of ficers, enployees, agents, representatives, successors and
assi gns of each.

B. "NMC'" nmeans National Medical Care, Inc., its directors,
of ficers, enployees, agents and representatives, its
predecessors, successors, and assigns; its subsidiaries,

di visions, and groups and affiliates controlled by NMC, and the
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respective directors, officers, enployees, agents,
representatives, successors and assigns of each; its donestic and
foreign parents, including WR Gace & Co., and the

subsi diaries, divisions, and groups and affiliates controlled by
any ot her donestic or foreign parent, and the respective
directors, officers, enployees, agents, representatives,
successors and assigns of each.
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C. "Conmmi ssi on" means the Federal Trade Conmi ssi on.

D. "NMC Acqui sition" nmeans the acquisition by Fresenius AG
of NMC that is the subject of an Agreenent and Pl an of
Reorgani zation entered into on or about February 4, 1996.

E. "Henodi al ysis Concentrate” neans the acid portion of
t he dial ysate solution used in henodial ysis treatnent of End
Stage Renal Disease to carry waste materials fromthe patient's
bl ood during the treatnent.

F. "Assets and Busi nesses" neans assets, properties,
busi nesses, and goodwi ||, tangi ble and intangi ble, including,
without Iimtation, the foll ow ng:

1. Al'l plant facilities, machinery, fixtures,
equi pnent, vehicles, transportation and storage facilities,
furniture, tools, supplies, stores, spare parts, and other
t angi bl e personal property;

2. Al'l customer lists, vendor lists, catal ogs, sales
pronotion literature, advertising materials, research
mat eri al s, technical information, dedicated nanagenent
i nformati on systens, information contained i n nanagenent
i nformati on systens, rights to software, tradenmarks, patents
and patent rights, inventions, trade secrets, technol ogy,
know how, ongoi ng research and devel opnent, specifications,
desi gns, draw ngs, processes and quality control data;

3. Raw mat eri al and fini shed product inventories and
goods in process;

4. Al right, title and interest in and to real
property, together w th appurtenances, |icenses, and
permts;

5. Al right, title, and interest in and to the
contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business
wi th customers (other than contracts in which Henodial ysis
Concentrate is sold as part of a package of products),
suppliers, sales representatives, distributors, agents,
personal property |essors, personal property |essees,
licensors, |icensees, consignors and consi gnees;

6. Al'l rights under warranties and guarant ees,
express or inplied;
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7. Al separately maintained, as well as rel evant
portions of not separately maintained, books, records and
files; and

8. Al'l itenms of prepaid expense.

G "Henodi al ysis Business to Be Divested" neans the
Freseni us Lew sberry, Pennsylvani a Henodi al ysi s Manuf acturi ng
Facility, and any additional Fresenius Henodi al ysis Concentrate
Assets and Busi nesses (as defined) as are necessary to assure the
Viability and Conpetitiveness of the Henodi al ysis Business to Be
Di vested in the manufacture, marketing or distribution of
Henodi al ysi s Concentrate.

H. "Viability and Conpetitiveness" neans that the
Henodi al ysi s Concentrate Business to Be Divested is capabl e of
functioning i ndependently and conpetitively in the Henodi al ysi s
Concentrate business in substantially the sane manner achi eved by
Fresenius prior to the divestiture.

I
| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat :

A Respondents shall, absolutely and in good faith, divest
t he Henodi al ysis Business to Be Divested to Di-Chem Inc. ("D -
Chent'), within 10 business days of either (i) the date this O der
is made final, or (ii) the closing of the NMC Acqui sition,
whi chever is |ater, pursuant to and in accordance with the My
17, 1996 agreenent between Fresenius USA, Inc. and Di - Chem
("Divestiture Agreenent”). If the ternms of such Divestiture
Agreenent are changed or supplenented in any way, notice of such
changes or suppl enentati ons nust be provided to the Comm ssion,
and any material changes or suppl enentations may be made only
with the prior approval of the Conm ssion. |In the event that the
Divestiture Agreenent is termnated through no fault of
Respondents, Respondents shall divest the Henodi al ysis Busi ness
to Be Divested within four (4) nonths of either (i) the date this
O der is made final, or (ii) the closing of the NMC Acquisition,
whi chever is |ater, and Respondents shall also effect such
addi tional arrangenents so as to assure the Viability and
Conpetitiveness of the Henodi al ysis Business to Be Divested.
Respondents shall divest the Henodi al ysis Business to Be Divested
to an acquirer that receives the prior approval of the Comm ssion
and only in a manner that receives the prior approval of the
Conmi ssi on.
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The purpose of the divestiture is to enable the acquirer to
conpete in the manufacture and sal e of Henodi al ysis Concentrate
in the United States and to renmedy the | essening of conpetition
resulting fromthe NMC Acquisition as alleged in the Comm ssion's
Conpl ai nt .

B. Pendi ng di vestiture of the Henodi al ysis Business to Be
Di vested, Respondents shall take such actions as are necessary to
mai ntain the marketability, viability and conpetitiveness of the
Henodi al ysi s Business to Be Divested, including, but not limted
to, taking necessary steps to ensure that the Lew sberry plant is
capabl e of, and has been approved for, comrercial production, and
to prevent destruction, renoval, wasting, deterioration or
i mpai rment of the Henodial ysis Business to Be Divested, other
t han ordi nary wear and tear

11
| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat :

A | f Respondents have not divested the Henodial ysis
Business to Be Divested within four (4) nonths of either (i) the
date this Order becones final, or (ii) the closing of the NMC
Acqui si tion, whichever is |ater, the Comm ssion may appoint a
trustee to divest the Henodi al ysis Busi ness to Be Divested
pursuant to Paragraph Il of this Oder. 1In the event that the
Comm ssion or the Attorney General brings an action pursuant to
8 5(1) of the Federal Trade Conmi ssion Act, 15 U . S.C. § 45(1), or
any other statute enforced by the Conmm ssion, Respondents shal
consent to the appointnment of a trustee in such action. Neither
t he appoi ntnment of a trustee nor a decision not to appoint a
trustee under this Paragraph shall preclude the Comm ssion or the
Attorney Ceneral from seeking civil penalties or any other relief
available to it, including a court-appointed trustee, pursuant to
8 5(1) of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, or any other statute
enforced by the Conm ssion, for any failure by the Respondents to
conply with this Order. The Conm ssion shall select the trustee
under this Paragraph, subject to the consent of Respondents,
whi ch consent shall not be unreasonably w thheld. The trustee
shall be a person with experience and expertise in acquisitions,
di vestitures, and licensing. |f Respondents have not opposed, in
witing, including the reasons for opposing, the selection of any
proposed trustee within ten (10) days after notice by the staff
of the Comm ssion to Respondents of the identity of any proposed
trustee, Respondents shall be deenmed to have consented to the
sel ection of the proposed trustee.
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B. If a trustee is appointed by the Comm ssion or a court
pursuant to Paragraph Il11.A of this Order, Respondents shal
consent to the followng ternms and conditions regarding the
trustee’s powers, duties, authority, and responsibilities:

1. Subj ect to the prior approval of the Conmm ssion
and consistent with the provisions of Paragraph Il of this
Order, the trustee shall have the exclusive power and
authority to divest the Henodi al ysis Busi ness to Be
Di vest ed.

2. Wthin ten (10) days after the appoi ntnment of the
trustee, Respondents shall execute a trust agreenent that,
subj ect to the prior approval of the Commi ssion, and in the
case of a court-appointed trustee, of the court, transfers
to the trustee all rights and powers necessary to permt the
trustee to effect the divestiture required by this O der.

3. The trustee shall have twelve (12) nonths fromthe
date the trust agreenment described in this Paragraph I11.B
i s approved by the Comm ssion to acconplish the divestiture
of the Henodi al ysis Business to Be Divested, which shall be
subject to the prior approval of the Comm ssion. |If,
however, at the end of this twelve (12) nonth period, the
trustee has submtted a plan of divestiture or believes that
di vestiture can be achieved within a reasonable tine, the
di vestiture period may be extended by the Conm ssion, or, in
the case of a court-appointed trustee, by the court.

4. The trustee shall have full and conplete access to
t he personnel, books, records and facilities related to the
Henodi al ysis Business to Be Divested and to any ot her
rel evant information as the trustee may reasonably request.
Respondents shall devel op such financial or other
information as the trustee may reasonably request and shal
cooperate with the trustee. Respondents shall take no
action to interfere with or inpede the trustee’s
acconpl i shnent of the divestiture. Any delays in
di vestiture caused by Respondents shall extend the tinme for
di vestiture under this Paragraph in an anount equal to the
del ay, as determ ned by the Comm ssion or, for a court-
appoi nted trustee, by the court.

5. The trustee shall use his or her best efforts to
negoti ate the nost favorable price and terns available in
each contract that is subnitted to the Comm ssion, subject
to Respondents' absol ute and unconditional obligation to
divest at no minimumprice. The divestiture shall be nmade
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in the manner and to an acquirer as set out in Paragraph |
of this Order; provided however, if the trustee receives
bona fide offers fromnore than one acquiring entity, and if
t he Comm ssion determ nes to approve nore than one such
acquiring entity, the trustee shall divest to the acquiring
entity or entities selected by Respondents from anong those
approved by the Conm ssion.

6. The trustee shall serve w thout bond or other
security at the cost and expense of Respondents, and on such
reasonabl e and custonmary terns and conditions as the
Comm ssion or a court nmay set. The trustee shall have the
authority to enploy, at the cost and expense of Respondents,
such consultants, accountants, attorneys, investnent
bankers, business brokers, appraisers, and other
representatives and assistants as are reasonably necessary
to carry out the trustee’'s duties and responsibilities. The
trustee shall account for all nonies derived fromthe
divestiture and all expenses incurred. After approval by
the Comm ssion and, in the case of a court-appointed
trustee, by the court, of the account of the trustee,
including fees for his or her services, all renaining nonies
shall be paid at the direction of the Respondents, and the
trustee’s power shall be term nated. The trustee’s
conpensation shall be based at least in significant part on
a commi ssion arrangenment contingent on the trustee’s
di vesting the Henodi al ysis Business to Be Divested.

7. Respondents shall indemify the trustee and hold
the trustee harm ess agai nst any | osses, clains, danmmges,
liabilities, or expenses arising out of, or in connection
with, the performance of the duties of the trustee,
including all reasonable fees of counsel and ot her expenses
incurred in connection with the preparation for, or defense
of any claim whether or not resulting in any liability,
except to the extent that such liabilities, |osses, damages,
claims, or expenses result from m sfeasance, gross
negligence, willful or wanton acts, or bad faith by the
t rust ee.

8. If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act
diligently, a substitute trustee shall be appointed in the
same nmanner as provided in Paragraph II1l1.A of this O der.

9. The Conmi ssion or, in the case of a court-
appoi nted trustee, the court, may on its own initiative or
at the request of the trustee issue such additional orders
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or directions as may be necessary or appropriate to
acconplish the divestiture required by this Oder.

10. The trustee shall have no obligation or authority
to operate or mmintain the Henodi al ysis Busi ness to Be
Di vest ed.

11. The trustee shall report in witing to Respondents
and the Comm ssion every thirty (30) days concerning efforts
to acconplish the divestiture.

|V
| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat :

A Wthin twenty (20) days after the date this Order
becones final and every thirty (30) days thereafter until
Respondents have fully conplied with the provisions of Paragraphs
Il and 11l of this Order, Respondents shall submt to the
Comm ssion a verified witten report setting forth in detail the
manner and formin which they intend to conply, are conplying,
and have conplied with this Order. Respondents shall include in
their conpliance reports, anong other things that are required
fromtinme to tine, a full description of the efforts being nade
to comply with Paragraph Il of the Order, including a description
of all substantive contacts or negotiations for the divestiture
and the identity of all parties contacted. Respondents shal
include in their conpliance reports copies of all witten
communi cations to and from such parties, all internal nenoranda,
and all reports and recommendati ons concerning divestiture.

Vv

I T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of ten (10) years
fromthe date this Order becones final, Respondents shall cease
and desist fromacquiring, without Prior Notification to the
Comm ssion (as defined below), directly or indirectly, through
subsi di ari es or otherw se, any assets for nanufacturing
Henodi al ysis Concentrate or any Henodi al ysis Concentrate
manufacturing facility, that have been enpl oyed in Henodi al ysis
Concentrate manufacturing in the United States within one (1)
year of the date of an offer by Fresenius to purchase the assets,
or any interest in a Henodialysis Concentrate manufacturing
facility in the United States, or any interest in any individual,
firm partnership, corporation or other |egal or business entity
that directly or indirectly owns or operates a Henodi al ysi s
Concentrate manufacturing facility in the United States.
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Provi ded, however, that this Paragraph V shall not be deened to
require Prior Notification to the Comm ssion for (i) the
construction of new facilities by Fresenius, (ii) the acquisition
of new or used equi pnent in the ordinary course of business from
a person other than the acquirer of the Henodi al ysis Business to
Be Divested, or any other present producer of Henodial ysis
Concentrate; or (iii) the purchase or |ease by Fresenius of a
facility that has not been operated as a Henodi al ysis Concentrate
manufacturing facility at any tinme during the year i medi ately
prior to the purchase or |ease by Freseni us.

“"Prior Notification to the Conm ssion” required by
Par agraph V shall be given on the Notification and Report
Formset forth in the Appendix to Part 803 of Title 16 of
t he Code of Federal Regul ations, as anended (hereinafter
referred to as "the Notification Formi'), and shall be
prepared and transmtted in accordance with the requirenents
of that part, except that no filing fee will be required for
any such notification, notification shall be filed with the
Secretary of the Comm ssion, notification need not be nade
to the United States Departnent of Justice, and notification
is required only of Fresenius and not of any other party to
the transaction. Fresenius shall provide the Notification
Formto the Commi ssion at least thirty (30) days prior to
consunmati ng any such transaction (hereinafter referred to
as the "first waiting period'). If, within the first
wai ting period, representatives of the Conm ssion nake a
witten request for additional information, Fresenius shal
not consunmate the transaction until twenty (20) days after
substantially conplying with such request for additional
information. Early term nation of the waiting periods in
t his paragraph may be requested and, where appropriate,
granted by letter fromthe Bureau of Conpetition.
Not wi t hst andi ng, Fresenius shall not be required to provide
Prior Notification to the Conm ssion pursuant to this order
for a transaction for which notification is required to be
made, and has been made, pursuant to Section 7A of the
Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18a.

\

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that until the obligations set forth
in Paragraphs Il, 1l and V are net, Respondents shall notify the
Comm ssion at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change
in the corporate Respondents such as di ssol ution, assignnent,
sale resulting in the energence of a successor corporation, or
the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change
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in the corporations that may affect conpliance obligations
arising out of the Order.

VI

| T I S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Respondents, for the purpose of
determ ning or securing conpliance with this Order, and subject
to any legally recognized privilege, upon witten request and on
five days notice to Respondents, shall permt any duly authorized
representative(s) of the Conmm ssion:

A Access, during office hours and in the presence of
counsel, to inspect and copy all books, |edgers, accounts,
correspondence, nenoranda and ot her records and docunents in the
possessi on or under the control of Respondents relating to any
matters contained in this Order; and

B. Wthout restraint or interference from Respondents, to
i ntervi ew Respondents' officers, directors, or enployees, who may
have counsel present, regarding such matters.

Signed this day of May, 1996.
FOR THE BUREAU OF COWPETI TI ON FOR FRESENI US AG AND
FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON FRESENI US USA, | NC
Robert S. Tovsky Udo Werle
At t or ney Chi ef Financial Oficer

Fr eseni us AG

M Howard Morse

Assi stant Director Dr. Rainer Runte
Counse
Freseni us AG

Ceorge S. Cary
Seni or Deputy Director

Ben J. Lipps, Ph.D
Pr esi dent
Freseni us USA, I|nc.

WlliamJ. Baer FOR O MELVENY & MYERS
Di rector
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Ri chard G Parker

David T. Beddow

Counsel to Freseni us AG and
Freseni us USA, |nc.



UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON

In the Matter of g
FRESENI US AG g
a corporation; and g
FRESENI US USA, | NC. g
a corporation. g
)

COVPLAI NT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Comm ssion
Act and of the Clayton Act, and by virtue of the authority vested
init by said Acts, the Federal Trade Comm ssion, having reason
to believe that Fresenius AG the parent conpany of Fresenius
USA, Inc. (collectively "Fresenius"), has entered into an
Agreenment and Pl an of Reorganization with WR. G ace & Co.
("Grace") whereby Fresenius will acquire from G ace the
busi nesses conprising National Medical Care, Inc. ("NMC'), and
that such acquisition, if consunmated, would violate Section 7 of
the O ayton Act, as anmended, 15 U S.C. §8 18, and Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, as anmended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and
havi ng reason to believe that Fresenius has entered into such
agreenent in restraint of trade in violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, and it appearing to the Conmm ssion
that a proceeding in respect thereof would be in the public
interest, hereby issues its conplaint stating its charges as
fol | ows:

l. THE RESPONDENTS

1. Respondent Fresenius AGis a corporation organized,
exi sting and doi ng busi ness under and by virtue of the | aws of
Germany with its office and principal place of business |ocated
at Borkenberg 14, 61440 (oerursel/Ts, Bad Honmburg, Germany.

2. Respondent Fresenius USA, Inc. is a corporation
organi zed, existing and doi ng busi ness under and by virtue of the
| aws of Massachusetts with its principal place of business
| ocated at 2637 Shadel ands Drive, WAl nut Creek, California
94598.



3. At all times relevant herein, the Respondents
(collectively "Fresenius") have been, and are now, engaged in
commerce as "comerce" is defined in Section 4 of the Federal



Trade Conmi ssion Act (15 U.S.C. § 44) and Section 1 of the
Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. 8 12), and are corporations whose busi ness
is in or affecting conmerce as defined in Section 4 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U S.C. § 44).

1. THE PROPOSED ACQUI SI TI ON

4. On or about February 24, 1996, Fresenius and G ace
executed an Agreenent and Pl an of Reorgani zation in which
Freseni us woul d acquire the assets and busi nesses conpri sing
Grace's NMC subsi di ary.

5. Fresenius and NMC are substantial direct conpetitors in
the United States market for henodial ysis concentrate.

I11. THE RELEVANT LI NE OF COMVERCE

6. One relevant line of comerce within which to anal yze
the effects of the acquisition is the United States market for
henodi al ysis concentrate. Henodialysis concentrate is a
bi car bonat e sol ution used in henodialysis treatnment of End Stage
Renal Disease to carry waste materials fromthe patient's bl ood
during the treatnent.

7. Henodi al ysis concentrate is a necessary product for
henodi al ysis treatnent with no avail abl e substitute. The cost of
t he henodi al ysis concentrate accounts for a small portion of the
cost of henodi al ysis treatnent.

8. | mports of henodial ysis concentrate into the United
States are rare. The potential for significant inports is
constrained by the fact that nbst concentrate is shipped in an
aqueous sol ution, nmaking shipping costs very high relative to the
val ue of the product.

9. Total sal es of henodialysis concentrate in the United
States are approximately $50 mlli on.

V. MARKET CONCENTRATI ON

10. Fresenius and NMC are two of a small nunber of
producers of henodi al ysis concentrate in the United States. NMC
is the | eading producer. The other producers include CGH
Medi cal, M nn-Tech Corporation, Rockwell Medical and Dana
Laboratories. After the acquisition, Fresenius wuld have a
mar ket share of henodi al ysis concentrate sales of over 50 percent
in the United States.



11. The United States market for henodi al ysis concentrate
is highly concentrated as neasured by the Herfindahl-Hi rschman
Index (HHI). On the basis of capacity, the proposed acquisition
woul d i ncrease concentration, as neasured by the HH, by over
1250 points, to over 3100. On the basis of sales, the proposed
acqui sition would increase concentration, as measured by the HHI
by over 950 points, to over 3000.

V. CONDI TI ONS OF ENTRY

12. Entry into the henodi al ysis concentrate nmarket would
not be likely to deter or offset reductions in conpetition
resulting fromthe acquisition.

13. In addition to obtaining FDA approval, a new entrant
woul d need to obtain a relatively high volune of sales in order
to have cost-conpetitive production, and to support the costs of
product testing. The need to capture a | arge market share nakes
the success of newentry less likely, and acts as a deterrent to
entry. Mst of the investnent in production would Iikely be sunk
in the event that entry were unsuccessful.

14. The likelihood of new entry is also reduced by the fact
that a significant proportion of the dialysis clinics that use
henodi al ysi s concentrate, including NMC, al so produce the
concentrate, and therefore are unlikely to purchase froma new
entrant. Vertically integrated firnms account for approxinmately a
third of patients receiving henodi al ysis treatnent.

15. Moreover, a new entrant into henodi al ysis concentrate
woul d need to have an effective distribution system However,
there are only a few large full-line distributors of henodi al ysis
products, the l|largest of which (Fresenius, NMC, and CGH Medi cal)
al ready produce henodi al ysis concentrate.

VI. EFFECTS OF THE ACQUI SI TI ON

16. The acquisition of NMC by Fresenius may substantially
| essen conpetition in the United States market for henodial ysis
concentrate because, anong ot her things:

a. it will elimnate substantial head-to-head
conpetition between NMC and Freseni us;

b. it will increase concentration substantially in a
hi ghly concentrated narket;

C. it wll increase the |ikelihood of coordinated
i nteraction anong producers of henodi al ysis concentrate;
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d. conpany docunents project that the increased
"consolidation” of suppliers will likely lead to "price
stabilization;" and

e. it wll likely result in increased prices for
henodi al ysi s concentrate.

VIl. VIOLATI ONS CHARGED

17. The acquisition agreenent between Fresenius and NMC
described in paragraph 4 violates Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commi ssion Act, as anmended, 15 U.S.C. § 45.

18. The proposed acquisition of NMC by Fresenius would, if
consummat ed, violate Section 7 of the Cayton Act, as anended, 15
US C 8 18, and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Conm ssion Act,
as anended, 15 U S.C. § 45.

WHEREFORE, THE PREM SES CONSI DERED, the Federal Trade
Comm ssion on this day of , 1996,
i ssues its conplaint against said respondents.

By the Conm ssi on.

Seal Donald S. dark
Secretary

| ssued:



ANALYSI S TO Al D PUBLI C COMVENT ON
THE PROVI SI ONALLY ACCEPTED CONSENT ORDER

The Federal Trade Conm ssion ("the Comm ssion") has accepted
for public comment, from Fresenius AG and Fresenius USA, Inc., an
agreenent containing a consent order. This agreenent has been
pl aced on the public record for sixty days for reception of
coments frominterested persons.

Comments received during this period will becone part of the
public record. After sixty days, the Conm ssion will again
review the agreenent and the comments received and will decide
whet her it should withdraw fromthe agreenent or nmeke final the
agreenent's order.

The Comm ssion's investigation of this matter concerns the
proposed acqui sition by Fresenius of the businesses of WR G ace
& Co. that conprise National Medical Care, Inc. ("NMC') The
Conmmi ssion's proposed conpl aint alleges that Fresenius and NMC
conpete with each other in henodialysis concentrate, a chem ca
solution that is necessary in henodialysis treatnment of patients
with End Stage Renal Disease, or chronic kidney failure.

The agreenent containing consent order would, if finally
accepted by the Conm ssion, settle charges that the acquisition
may substantially | essen conpetition in the production and sale
of henodi al ysis concentrate. The Conm ssion has reason to
believe that the acquisition agreenent violates Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Comm ssion Act and the acquisition would have

anticonpetitive effects and would violate Section 7 of the



Cl ayton Act and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Conm ssion Act if
consunmat ed, unless an effective remedy elimnates such
anticonpetitive effects.

The Conmm ssion's Conpl aint alleges that henodi al ysis
concentrate is a necessary product in henodialysis treatnent, and
that the use of this product would not be significantly affected
by a price increase. The Conplaint further alleges that inports
of henodi al ysis concentrate are small and, because of high
shi ppi ng costs, would not be responsive to a price increase in
the United States. The market for henodi al ysis concentrate in
the United States is highly concentrated. In addition, the entry
of other producers is unlikely. The Comm ssion's Conplaint
al l eges that the proposed acquisition would | essen conpetition by
elimnating conpetition between Fresenius and NMC, and woul d nmake
nore |ikely coordinated interaction anong the renaining producers
of henodi al ysis concentrate, |eading to higher prices. Conpany
pl anni ng docunents, in fact, project that "increased
consol i dati on" anbng concentrate producers will lead to
"stabilization" of prices.

The proposed order accepted for public comrent requires
Fresenius to divest its Lew sberry, Pennsylvania concentrate
manufacturing plant to Di-Chem Inc. (“Di-Cheni), along with
ot her assets. The purpose of the proposed divestiture is to
create a viable and conpetitive producer of henodial ysis
concentrate and thereby to renedy the | essening of conpetition
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alleged in the conplaint. Di-Chem already manufactures and

mar ket s ot her dialysis products. |In addition, Di-Chenis
managenent has substantial experience in the henodial ysis
concentrate business and in other products used in henodial ysis.
Public comrents regarding all aspects of the proposed divestiture
to DD-Chemw || be considered along with other comments on the
proposed order.

Under the terns of the proposed order, Fresenius nust divest
the Lewi sberry plant to Di-Chemw thin ten (10) days after the
proposed Order is nmade final by the Commi ssion. [If the
divestiture to Di-Chemis not acconplished, then Fresenius nust
di vest the Lew sberry plant within four (4) nonths to an acquirer
that is approved by the Commission. |If Fresenius fails to
acconplish the divestiture, then the Conmm ssion may appoint a
trustee to divest the Lew sberry plant, along with ancillary
assets or other arrangenents that nmay be necessary to assure that
the Lew sberry plant is capable of being operated i ndependently
and conpetitively by its acquirer. The proposed order also
requires that Fresenius provide prior notice to the Comm ssion of
future acquisitions of either assets used to nmanufacture
henodi al ysi s concentrate or conpani es that produce henodi al ysis
concentrat e.

The purpose of this analysis is to invite public comment

concerning the proposed order. This analysis is not intended to



constitute an official interpretation of the agreenent and order

or to nodify their ternms in any way.



DI SSENTI NG STATEMENT OF COW SSI ONER ROSCOE B. STAREK, |11
In the Matter of

Fresenius AG et al.,
File No. 961 0053

| cannot join in the Conmm ssion's decision to accept a
consent agreenent for public comment in this matter. The
evi dence accumul ated in the investigation is not sufficient to
give rise to reason to believe that respondents' acquisition of
Nati onal Medical Care, Inc. ("NMC') fromWR Gace & Co. is
likely to Il essen conpetition substantially in a United States
mar ket for henodi al ysis concentrate ("HD concentrate").

HD concentrate consists of various salts (sodium chloride,
magnesi um chl ori de, cal cium chl oride, and potassium chl ori de) and
dextrose in purified water, with sodi um bi carbonate (i.e., baking
soda) added at a later stage. Because this easily formul ated
m xture does not enter the body and therefore is not a "drug" for
pur poses of Food and Drug Adm nistration ("FDA") regulation, the
FDA applies to HD concentrate the sonewhat nore |enient
regul ati ons applicable to nedical devices. Regulatory delay thus
does not significantly constrain entry by new firns or expansion
by i ncunbents.

The investigation reveal ed that various producers of HD
concentrate -- including Fresenius itself -- entered quickly and
easily into the manufacture of the product, and sone stated that
t hey coul d i nexpensively increase their capacity to make HD
concentrate by as nuch as 60 percent within 30 days, w thout
substantial investnment or the need for additional FDA approval.?
These indicia of cheap and sinple entry and expansi on may explain
why the delivered price of HD concentrate has fallen continuously
since the product first becane avail able.?

! G ven the contrast between the tine required for entry
in the United States and that required in Germany, it is perhaps
unsurprising that the latter nation's Bundeskartellant concl uded
that Fresenius' acquisition of a conpetitor in HD concentrate
woul d have anticonpetitive effects. Entry into the German HD
concentrate business apparently takes three to five years. In
the United States, entry requires around ni ne nonths.

2 It is difficult to accept the proposition that "[njost
of the investnment in production would |ikely be sunk in the event
that entry were unsuccessful” (proposed conplaint, § 13). The
equi pnent used in the manufacture of HD concentrate appears to be
adaptable to alternate uses, and indeed there is evidence of

(continued. ..)



Thus, any assessnment of this acquisition's potential to
i ncrease concentration in the market for HD concentrate -- and in
turn make |ikelier an exercise of nmarket power -- nust take into
account several strongly mtigating factors, including
approximately 40 percent current excess capacity, the
af orenentioned ability of manufacturers to expand capacity
speedily and at mininmal cost, and the evident ability of
custoners (henodialysis clinics) to integrate into the
manuf acture of HD concentrate in the event concentrate producers
behave anticonpetitively. Certain custoners that specul ated t hat
the acquisition mght |lead to higher prices for HD concentrate
appear to have been unaware of current plans for significant
entry or capacity expansion by firnms other than Fresenius and
NMC. Moreover, other custoner conplaints seemto have been
notivated by a fear that the vertical integration of Fresenius (a
manuf act urer of Kkidney dialysis products) and NMC (an operator of
henodi al ysis treatnent centers, anong its other businesses) could
make the nerged firma stronger conpetitor in dialysis treatnent.

It is always tenpting to accept the "bird in the hand”
represented by a consent agreenent proffered in the early stages
of an investigation, such as the one entered into (apparently
wi t hout significant resistance) by Fresenius. Neverthel ess, when
t he evidence on entry, expansion, and the absence of
anticonpetitive effects is as clear as in this case, the issuance
of a consent order is unwarranted.

| therefore dissent.

2(...continued)
firms planning to convert sone HD concentrate facilities to other
pur poses.



